ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


I. 	 THE INVESTIGATING OFFICER HAD REASONABLE 
SUSPICION TO STOP THE RESPONDENT'S CAR. 

II. 	 THERE IS SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD TO 
SHOW THAT THE RESPONDENT WAS Dm, AND THE 
CREDmILITYDETERMINATIONSBYTHE FACT FINDER 
ARE ENTITLED TO DEFERENCE BY REVIEWING 
COURTS. 

ill.· 	THE RESPONDENT FAILED TO PROVE THAT SHE 
REQUESTED A BLOOD OR URINE TEST. 

IV. 	 THE ABSENCE OF A VIDEO DOES NOT WARRANT AN 

ADVERSE INFERENCE. 


STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On March 10, 2012, at approximately 1:54 a.m., Officer L. W. Holeston of the Madison 

Police Department (the "Investigating Officer") observed a white Ford going in the opposite 

direction on State Street in Madison, Boone County, West Virginia, near McDonald's. The car was 

straddling the center line, weaving, swerving into the Investigating Officer's lane the driver was 

hitting the brakes frequently and the car was going at a slow speed. Appendix Record at 91, 168, 

173-76 (hereinafter, "A.R. at _") The Investigating Officer turned on his blue lights and 

subsequently stopped the Respondent at Giovanni's in Danville. A.R. at 192, 221, 262. 

Upon contacting the Respondent, who was driving the car, the Investigating Officer smelled 

an odor ofalcohol on the Respondent's breath. A.R. at 92, 176,224. There was a male passenger in 

the car, and the Respondent told the Investigating Officer that she was "taking his drunk ass home." 

A.R. at 177. The Respondent was unsteady exiting the vehicle, walking to the roadside and standing. 

A.R. at 92, 178. Her speech was slurred, and her eyes were red and glassy. A.R. at 92, 179,226. The 

Respondent admitted that she drank: a beer. A.R. at 92, 179. The Investigating Officer observed wine 

in the Respondent's car. A.R. at 92,223. 



The Investigating Officer had been trained to perform field sobriety tests at the West Virginia 

State Police Academy. A.R. at 180. He explained the horizontal gaze nystagmus ("HGN") test to the 

Respondent. The Respondent had lack of smooth pursuit, distinct and sustained nystagmus at 

maximum deviation and onset ofnystagmus prior to 45 degrees in both eyes. A.R. at 92, 182-83. The 

Investigating Officer testified that although he marked the box for,resting nystagmus as ''yes,'' she 

in fact did not have resting nystagmus and he marked ''yes'' in error. A.R. at 92, 181-82. On cross

examination, the Investigating Officer testified that he knew from the time of the arrest that 

Respondent did not have resting nystagmus, but that he did not realize his cleric~ error until the day 

of the heariri.g. A.R. at 200-02, 206. 

The Investigating Officer explained and demonstrated the walk and turn test to the 

Respondent. She missed heel to toe. A.R. at 92, 183. The Investigating Officer testified that the 

Respondent missed heel-to-toe on every single step and side-stepped. A.R. at 214-16. 

The Investigating Officer explained and demonstrated the one leg stand test to the 

Respondent. She swayed while balancing and put her foot down. A.R. at 93, 185. 

The Respondent refused to take the preliminary breath test that was offered. A.R. at 93, 185

87. 

The Investigating Officer arrested -the Respondent for driving under the influence ofalcohol 

(hereinafter, "DUI") on March 10, 2012 and took her to the station for administration of the 

Intoximetertest. A.R. at 91, 187. The Respondent provided an insufficient sample. A.R. at 94, 188. 

The Investigating Officer offered Respondent a blood test, but she refused it. A.R. at 94, 188. 

The Office ofAdministrative Hearings ("OAR") held an administrative hearing on August 

11,2016, at which the Investigating Officer and the Respondent testified. The DUI Information 

Sheet, Implied Consent Statement and Intoximeter ticket were admitted into evidence at the hearing. 

A.R. at 172. 

At the hearing, the Respondent denied that she had been drinking on the night ofthe arrest. 

A.R. at 238. She testified that she was not stopped by the Investigating Officer, but rather that she 
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was being followed by someone with bright lights on and she pulled into Giovanni's to let the person 

pass. She testified that when she pulled onto Giovanni's, the Investigating Officer pulled in behind 

her and turned his blue lights on. A.R. at 240-41. She testified that she requested a blood or urine 

test. A.R. at 245. She testified that she was not swerving or weaving or straddling the center line 

while driving. A.R. at 247. 

The OAR's Final Order was entered on November 4,2016, and affirmed the revocation of 

Respondent's licens.e forDUI. A.R. at 286-292. 

The Respondent filed a Petition for Review ofAdministrative Order in the circuit court of 

Boone County on November 21, 2016. A.R. at 311-315.The circuit court held a hearing on the 

Respondent's Motionfor Stay ofAdministrative Order on December 19,2016. The circuit court 

ordered a 120-day stay. The matter was not briefed, and no further hearing was held. The parties 

submitted proposed orders in April, 2017. The circuit court entered its Final Order reversing the 

OAR's Final Order on July 7,2017. A.R. at 2-12. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The circuit court essentially took the Respondent's position in this ~atter and based its 

reversal of the OAR's Final Order on the fact that it disagreed with the OAR's credibility 

determinations and findings of fact based on the evidence. The court never found that there was a 

lack ofreasonable suspicion for the stop ofthe Respondent's car; it simply dropped a footnote noting 

the discrepancies between the Investigating Officer's and the Respondent's testimonies regarding 

the stop. A.R. at 4. 

The lower court focused on the Respondent's denial of drinking on the night in question, 

which conflicts with the Investigating Officer's testimony that she admitted having a beer. 

The court also focused on the HGN test, emphasizing a drawing that Respondent's counsel 

had the Investigating Officer make during the hearing. The circuit court also made much ado about 

a clerical error by the Investigating Officer regarding the HGN test. The Respondent had attempted 

in many ways to discredit the Investigating Officer at the hearing, including insinuating that the 
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Investigating Officer was lying about checking the resting nystagmus box on the DUI Infonnation 

Sheet. As the OAR found, "the Investigating Officer freely admitted that he had made a mistake in 

marking the resting nystagmus box... " A.R. at 289. 

The court also focused on the other field sobriety tests, and in the case ofthe walk -and-turn 

test, misrepresented the facts. 

The court found that the Investigating Officer had a video from the night ofthe arrest, a fact 

which is not in evidence. The court found that as a result, there was spoilation of evidence. This is 

clear error of fact and law. 

The court complained about the lack or reconciliation ofconflicting evidence,. when in fact 

it substituted its judgment for that of the fact finder, particularly in regard to credibility 

determinations. This was a result-oriented decision. 

There is sufficient evidence in the record to support the finding of the OAR in its Final 

Order. The circuit court misstated fact and law and manufactured issues in order to conclude that 

the OAR's order should be reversed. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Argument pursuant to Rev. R.A.P Ru1e 19 is appropriate on the bases that this case involves 

assignments oferror in the application ofsettled law; and that this case involves aresu1t against the 

weight of the evidence. 

ARGUMENT 

I. Standard of Review 

This Court's review of a circuit court's order deciding an administrative appeal is made 

pursuant to W. Va. Code § 29A-5--4(a)(1998). The Court reviews questions oflaw presented de 

novo; and findings offact by the administrative officer are accorded deference unless the reviewing 

court believes the findings to be clearly wrong. Reed v. Hall, 235 W. Va 322, 773 S.E.2d 666 

(2015). "In cases where the circuit court has [reversed] the result before the administrative agency, 

this Court reviews the final order of the circuit court and the ultimate disposition by it of an 
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administrative law case under an abuse ofdiscretion standard and reviews questions oflaw de novo." 

Syl. Pt. 2, Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W.Va. 588,474 S.E.2d 518 (1996). 

II. The Investigating Officer Had Reasonable Suspicion to Stop the Respondent's Car. 

The Investigating Officer had a reasonable articulable reason to stop the Respondent's car. 

He observed the Respondent weaving, straddling the centerline and driving a~ a slow rate of speed. 

Erratic driving provides reasonable suspicion for the stop of a vehicle. "Weaving across the lane 

markers into another traffic lane" State v. Gustafson, 258 So.2d 1,2 (Fla. 1972), affd 414 U.S. 260, 

94 S.Ct. 488, 38 L.Ed.2d 456 (1973) and an "erratically driven vehicle" State v. Moore, 165 W.Va. 

837,272 S.E.2d 804 (1980), n. 4, have been held to constitute reasonable suspicion. State v. Flint, 

171 W. Va. 676,681,301 S.E.2d 765, 770 (1983). Erratic driving may also be evidence ofdriving 

under the influence. "TIlls evidence of erratic driving does not go just to the issue of whether the 

traffic stop was justified; it is also evidence that Mr. Hill was driving while under the influence." 

Reed v. Hill, 770 S.E.2d 501, 511 CW. Va. 2015)."The criteria for reasonable suspicion to stop a 

vehicle are very similar to a street stop under Terry [v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S.Ct. 1868,20 L.Ed.2d 

889 (1968)]. Factors such as erratic or evasive driving, the appearance ofthe vehicle orits occupants, 

the area where the erratic or evasive driving takes place, and the experience ofthe police officers are 

significant in determining reasonable suspicion." Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W.Va. 588,474 S.E.2d 

518, 526 (1996). "It is beyond dispute, and dictated by common sense, that a law enforcement officer 

may investigate illegal activity that he or she personally has observed, so long as the officer's 

suspicion of illegal activity is objectively reasonable." Miller v. Chenoweth, 229 W. Va. 114, 120, 

727 S.E.2d 658, 664 (2012). "An investigating officer could reasonably characterize Mr. Fuller's 

driving as erratic, which this Court has determined is a significant factor in determining reasonable 

suspicion." Fuller v. Reed, 2015 WL 9693893, at *6 CW. Va. Mar. 11, 2015)(memorandum 

decision). "In Navarette v. California, 134 S.Ct. 1683 (2014), the United States Supreme Court 

stated that whether a police officer had an articulable reasonable suspicion to conduct an 

investigatory stop depends on ''the factual and practical considerations of everyday life on which 
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reasonable and prudent men, not legal technicians, act." ld. at 1690 (internal quotation and citation 

omitted)." Reed v. Hussing, 2016 WL 3383261, at *2 CW. Va. June 17, 2016)(memorandum 

decision). "In the present case, the totality of the circumstances known by the Investigating Officer 

gave rise to his reasonable suspicion to stop the vehicle being driven by the Respondent." Reed v. 

Aiken, 2016 WL 1532758 CW. Va. Apr. 14, 2016)(memorandum decision). 

The Investigating Officer was justified in stopping the Respondent's vehicle. "In syllabus 

point two ofGustke [State ex rei. Statev. Gustke, 205 W. Va. 72, 516 S.E.2d283 (1999)J, this Court 

held that' [a J law enforcement officer acting outside ofhis or her territorial jurisdiction has the same 

authority to arrest as does a private citizen and may make an extraterritorial arrest under those' 

circumstances in which a private citizen would be authorized to make an arrest.' 205 W.Va. at 74, 

516 S.E.2d at 285." Dale v. Odum, 233 W. Va. 601, 607, 760 S.E.2d 415,421 (2014). 

The Investigating Officer's encounter with the Respondent is also justified under the 

"community caretaker" doctrine. "The doctrine recognizes that, in our communities, law 

enforcement personnel are expected to engage in activities and interact with citizens in a number of 

ways beyond the investigation of criminal conduct. Such activities include a general safety and 

welfare role for police officers in helping citizens who may be in peril or who may otherwise be in 

need of some form of assistance." Ullom v. Miller, 227 W. Va. 1, 10, 705 S.E.2d 111, 120 (2010). 

The Investigating Officer had observed the Respondent straddling the center line, weaving, swerving, 

going at a slow speed, and turning into the Giovanni's parking lot at approximately 1 :54 a.m. He had 

a duty to investigate and ensure that neither the Respondent nor the public was in danger. 

The OAR did not give the Respondent's blanket denials of bad driving (A.R. at 247) any 

credence. A.R at 286,289. Further, the circuit court's Final Order did not make an: express finding 

that there was no reason for the stop. 

ITI. 	 There Is Sufficient Evidence in the Record to Show That the Respondent 
Was DUI, and the Credibility Determinations by the Fact Finder Are Entitled 
To Deference by Reviewing Courts. 

The Investigating Officer had reasonable grounds to believe that the Respondent was driving 
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under the influence ofalcohol. The Respondent was unsteady exiting her car, walking and standing. 

She had the odor of alcohol on her person. She had slurred speech and bloodshot, glassy eyes. She 

admitted to the Investigating Officer that she had consumed a beer. 

The horizontal gaze nystagmus ("HGN") test was properly administered. The IIivestigating 

Officer had checked the box "Resting Nystagmus" in error. The Respondent had lack of smooth 

pursuit, exhibited distinct and sustained nystagmus at maximum deviation and had onset of 

nystagmus prior to a 45 degree angle. 

The drawing that the Investigating Officer made at the request of Respondent's counsel at 

the hearing (A.R. at 160) is not an indicator of the Investigating Officer's ability to administer the 

HGN test. As the OAR Hearing Examiner found, ".. .it was plain from the Investigating Officer's 

demeanor and testimony that he really did not understand what Petitioner's counsel was asking him 

to do." A.R. at 290. As the Investigating Officer testified, the 45 degree angle of the eyes is "about 

at the shoulder" (A.R. at 207) or ''until you can't see the whites of the eyes," (A.R. at 207-08); and 

that " ... each person is a little different. I mean, some 'people you've got to go out a little bit further 

on to get the white not to be in the comer of their eye so you can see." A.R. at 208. The officers are 

trained and practice in three dimensions, not on geometry exercises with pencil and paper. 

The Respondent failed the one-leg-stand test. She swayed while balancing and put her foot 

down. A.R. at 93, 185. This is acknowledged in the circuit court's Final Order. A.R. at 5. 

The Respondent failed the walk-and-turn test. Inexplicably, the circuit court's Final Order 

states, "The Petitioner successfully passed this field sobriety test." A.R. at 5. The Investigating 

Officer testified that the Respondent missed heel-to-toe on every single step and side-stepped. A.R. 

at 214-16. The circuit court committed clear error in this factual finding. 

The OAR Hearing Examiner found that the Investigating Officer's testimony was reliable 

and credible. This finding is owed deference by this Court. Where there is a conflict between the 

testimony or evidence oftwo different witnesses, Muscatel! v. Cline, 196 W. Va. 588, 474 S .E.2d 

518 (1996), a finder of fact may make implicit credibility determinations which a court must defer 
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to as much as an explicit finding of credibility. Elaborate, extended, or explicit analysis is not 

required. "[T]his Court has recognized that' [c ]redibility detenninations made by an administrative 

law judge are ... entitled to deference.' SyL pt. 1, in part, Cahill v. Mercer County Bd. ofEduc., 208 

W.Va. 177, 539 S.E.2d 437 (2000). This is so because the hearing examiner who observed the 

witness testimony is in the best position to make credibility judgments. Cf Gum v. Dudley, 202 

W.Va. 477,484, 505 S.E.2d 391, 398 (1997) ('The trial court ... observed the demeanor of the 

witnesses and other nuances ofa trial that a record simply cannot convey. ')." Sims v. Miller, 227 W. 

Va. 395,402, 709 S.E.2d 750, 757 (2011), citingMuscateli, supra. Simply put, "A reviewing court 

cannot assess witness credibility through a record."Michael D.C. v. Wanda L.c., 201 W.Va. 381, 

388,497 S.E.2d 531,538 (1997). 

There is no "law requiring the ALJ to use particular words or to write a minimum number 

of sentences or paragraphs." Francis v. Astrue, No. 3:09-cv-01826 (VLB), 2011 WL 344087, at * 
4 (D. Conn. Feb. 1,2011). Indeed, an ALJ is not required to make '''explicit credibility findings' 

as to each bit ofconflicting testimony, so long as his factual findings as a whole show that [the ALJ] 

'implicitly resolver d]' such conflicts." N.L.R.B. v. Beverly Enterprises-Massachusetts, Inc., 174 

F.3d 13, 26 (1 st Cir. 1999) (quoting NL.R.B. v. Berger Transfer & Storage Co., 678 F.2d 679,687 

(7th Cir.1982)). Accord J.P. ex reI. Peterson v. County Sch. Bd., 516 F.3d 254,261 (4th Cir. 2008) 

("While the hearing officer did not explicitly state that he found the School Board's witnesses more 

persuasive, our case law does not require an IDEA hearing officer to offer a detailed explanation of 

his credibility assessments .... Moreover, because the hearing officer ultimately determined that J.P. 

made more than minimal progress under the 2004 IEP and that the 2005 IEP was adequate (views 

that were advocated by the School Board's witnesses and disagreed with by the parents' witnesses), 

it is apparent that the hearing officer in fact found the School Board's evidence more persuasive."): 

NL.R.B. v. Katz's Delicatessen, 80 F .3d 755, 765 (2d Cir.1996) (An ALJ may resolve credibility 

disputes implicitly rather than explicitly where his ''treatment of the evidence is supported by the 

record as a whole."); see also Martin v. Randolph County Bd. ofEd. , 195 W. Va. 297, 306, 465 

8 




S.E.2d 399, 408 (1995) (emphasis added) ("The ALJ, who apparently disbelieved the plaintiffs 

recollection of the circumstances leading up to the continuance, did not exceed permissible bounds 

in accepting testimony of the defendant's witnesses about this exchange."). 

When an order reflects finding offacts consistent with the testimony ofone witness, the trier 

of fact has implicitly made credibility judgments. See, e.g., State v. Ali, No. A08-2080, 2009 WL 

2498548,3 (Minn. Ct. App. Aug. 18,2009) ("to the extent that the district court's findings of fact 

are consistent with Officer Fishbaugher's testimony, the findings reflect the district court's implicit 

determination that Officer Fishbaugher was credible"); Crucia v. State Farm Ins. Co., 754 So.2d 

270, 272 (La. Ct. App.1999) ("Although the trial court avoided making explicit credibility findings, 

such findings are implicit in the trial court's reasons for judgment[.]"). This Court has held, "[a]n 

appellate court may not set aside the factfinder's resolution of a swearing match unless one of the 

witnesses testified to something physically impossible or inconsistent with contemporary 

documents." Martin v. Randolph County Bd. ofEd., 195 W. Va. 297,306,465 S.E.2d 399, 408 

(1995). 

There is sufficient evidence in the record to show, by a preponderance ofthe evidence, that 

the Respondent drove a motor vehicle under the influence of alcohol on March 10, 2012. At 1 :54 

a.m., she was straddling the center line, crossing into the opposite lane, weaving, swerving, using 

her brakes frequently and going at a slow speed. She had the odor of alcohol on her breath, she was 

unsteady exiting her vehicle, walking to the roadside and standing. Her speech was slurred, her eyes 

were red and glassy, and she admitted that she had a beer. She performed poorly on three field 

sobriety tests. "Where there is evidence reflecting that a driver was operating a motor vehicle upon 

a public street or highway, exhibited symptoms of intoxication, and had consumed alcoholic 

beverages, this is sufficient proof under a preponderance of the evidence standard to warrant the 

administrative revocation ofhis driver's license for driving under the influence ofalcohol." Syllabus 

Point 2, Albrechtv. State, 173 W.Va. 268, 314 S.E.2d 859 (1984). Syllabus Point 2, Carte v. Cline, 

200 W.Va. 162,488 S.E.2d 437 (1997). Syl. Pt. 4, Lowe v. Cicchirillo, 223 W.Va. 175,672 S.E.2d 
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311 (2008). Syi. Pt 3, Groves v. Cicchirillo, 225 W.Va. 474, 694 S.E.2d 639 (2010). 

IV. The Respondent Did Not Prove That She Requested a Blood or Urine Test. 

Cleverly, in the course ofher testimony in which she simply denied much ofthe Investigating 

Officer's evidence, the Respondent stated, "I asked him [the Investigating Officer] ifI could take a 

blood or urine test..." A.R. at 245. The Investigating Officer had testified and sworn on the DUI 

Information Sheet that he offered Respondent a blood test, but she refused it. A.R. at 94, 188. The 

OAR clearly determined that the Respondent's testimony was not credible. 

Yet again, the Final Order gets it dead wrong. The circuit court held, "The Petitioner 

provided undisputed testimony that shortly after her arrest she requested a secondary chemical test 

of the blood or urine test [ sic] to determine the alcohol concentration of her blood; however, 

Patrolman Holeston did not comply with the said demand." A.R. at 9-10. It ignores the evidence on 

the DUI Information Sheet and the Investigating Officer's testimony to the effect that the 

Investigating Officer offered a blood test and the Respondent refused. A.R. at 94, 188. The circuit 

court's choice of selective evidence to support its position is ironic in light of its accusation in the 

Final Order that the Investigating Officer had selective memory: "Stated differently, Patrolman 

Holeston remembers information ifit advances the DMV's position, but does not remember if the 

same does not advance the DMV's position." Fn. 3, A.R. at 5. 

V. The Absence of a Video Does Not Warrant an Adverse Inference. 

The Final Order holds, without support, that " ... the 'lost' or 'missing' video from Patrolman 

Holeston's in-car video recording system which captured the event (traffic stop, field sobriety tests, 

etc.) at the time ofthe arrest" (A.R. at 10) constituted spoliation ofevidence. There is nothing in the 

record that shows that a video was actually made, much less that it captures the stop and the field 

sobriety tests. The contents of any purported videos are not in evidence, either by the Investigating 

Officer's testimony or by the presence of a video. 

The lack ofa video does not warrant an adverse inference. In Sims v. Miller, 227 W. Va. 395, 

709 S.E.2d 750 (2011), this Court found that the onus for obtaining evidence is as much the driver's 
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as any other party's. "Mr. Sims could have obtained a copy of the videotape at issue, and, if the 

video' was in fact favorable to him, he could have attempted to present the same during the 

administrative hearing. However, in the instant case, Mr. Sims did not request or subpoena the 

videotape, nor did the hearing examiner order production of the video or hold the record open for

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