Introdu ctil)n 

NOW COMES Doreen Grillot (Respondent), by counsel, Matthew M. Hatfield, and 

hereby submits, pursuant to Rule 16(h) of the Revised Rules of Appellate Procedure, the 

Respondent's Summary Response In Opposition To The Petitioner's Brief Simply put, the 

Boone County Circuit Court did not abuse its discretion by reversing the Final Order of 11/04116 

issued by the Office of Administrative Rearings (OAB) wbich held the Respondent drove a 

motor vebicle in tills State on 0311 0/12 wbile under the influence of alcohol.

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

Argument 

1. 	 Standard of Review 

In a case where a Circuit Court reversed the result before the administrative agency, this 

Court reviews the Circuit Court's fmal order under an abuse of discretion standard. Syi. Pt. 2, 

Muscatell v. Cline, 196 "v. Va. 588,474 S.E.2d 518 ("V. Va. 1996). Here, the Boone County 

Circuit Court reversed the result before the administrative agency (OAB). Accordingly, this 

Court reviews the Circuit Court's Final Order under an abuse of discretion standard. 

II. 	 The Circuit Court Did Not Make Credibility Determinations And Did Not Otherwise 
Abuse Its Discretion Bv Reversing The Result Before The Administrative Agencv 

The Petitioner asserts the Circuit Court essentially made credibility determinations which 

were left to the discretion of the administrative law judge (ALl). This is not true. To begin, the 

Petitioner argues the Circuit Court abused its discretion by concluding Patrolman Holeston was 

not qualified to administer the HGN test and interpret the results thereof. In particular, he has 

no understanding of the degrees contained within a circle (360 to be precise); the significance 

of the a'ris point (or beginning); an understanding of vvhat constitutes 45 degrees from the 

a'{is/starting point; etc. Indeed, the actual diagram found at A. R. 160 wherein Patrolman 

Holeston noted (in his own handwriting) that ifthe beginning point was the 12 0' clock position 

on a clock, then the 5 0' clock position on the clock vvould signify 45 degrees (in reality it is 
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approx. 150 degrees) proves he is not qualified to administer the HGN test and interpret the 

result thereof. The Petitioner seemingly acknowledges Patrolman Holeston's testimony in this 

regard is incorrect. Accordingly, Petitioner advances the same argument as the OAR and 

contends Patrolman Holeston, based upon his "demeanor and testimony", did not understand the 

scope of the undersigned's inquiry when he was asked to mark the diagram found at A. R. 160. 

This is argument is absurd. The entire reason the undersigned asked Patrolman Holeston to place 

his initials on the diagram referenced at A. R. 160 was so there was absolutely no confusion as 

to where he contended 45 degrees was located. There was no other reason to make such a 

request (i.e., so one could not later argue Patrolman Holeston was confused; did not understand; 

etc.). Indeed, Patrolman Holeston did not understand. He did not understand how to properly 

administer the HON test nor how to interpret the results thereof. In fact, his lack of 

understanding is further demonstrated by simply looking at the Dill Information Sheet wherein 

he noted the Respondent exhibited a resting nystagmus (which lack of understanding was not 

remedied by Attorney Elswick bringing the "alleged error" to his attention 4 Yz years after the 

fact and just minutes prior to the 08111116 hearing). A. R. 193,266, & 201-202. Perhaps most 

telling is Patrolman Holeston's testimony that "45 degrees is not in the same place for every 

person as the differences between people affected where 45 degrees is for each person". A. R. 

290. This is incredible (and most incredible the OAH accepted the testimony as accurate). 45 

degrees is not different for every person (if this were the case, the HGN test would be 

meaningless). 45 degrees from the a"Xis is a constant. It never changes. Indeed, it is not clear 

error to disregard the results of the HGN test when the evidence presented overwhelmingly 

suggests the said test was not properly administered. Reed v. Hill, 235 W.Va. 1, 770 S.E.2d 501 
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(W.Va. 2015). Based upon the above, the Circuit Court did not abuse its discretion by 

disregarding the HON test because Patrolman Holeston was not qualified to administer the said 

test and interpret the results thereof. 

The Petitioner next argues the Respondent failed the W AT test and that Circuit Court 

inexplicably stated in its Final Order she "passed this field sobriety test". A. R. 5. See the 

Petitioner's Brie/at page 7. This is wrong. The OAB made a factual determination that the 

Respondent "did not fail" (i.e., that she passed) the VVAT test, not the Circuit Court. A. R. 290. 

Rather, the OAB noted in its Final Order that the Respondent passed this field sobriety test, but 

inexplicably failed to give any weight to the same in its Final Order. A. R. 290. Specifically, 

the OAB's Final Order concluded, in part, that "the Petitioner did not/ail the walk-and-turn 

test. As a result no weight is given to the walk and turn test". A. R. 290. Significantly, the 

OAB failed to articulate why it failed to give any weight to the fact the Respondent passed this 

field sobriety test. A. R. 288-292. Contrary to the Petitioner's argument, the Circuit Court did 

not commit clear legal error by making a factual fmding that the Respondent passed the WAT 

as the OAB reached this same conclusion. 

Patrolman Holeston also testified the Respondent admitted to consuming alcohol ("a 

beer"). A. R. 179. The Respondent, however, adamantly denied consuming alcohol and, further, 

testified she never advised Patrolman Holeston of the same. A. R. 238. The OAB then notes 

throughout it's Final Order that the Respondent admitted to Patrolman Holeston that she 

consumed beer (and it clearly gave this alleged admission substantial weight in determining the 

ultimate issue), however, it does not mention or address the fact the Respondent denied making 

any such statements/admissions. A. R. 290. "vVhere there is a direct conflict in the critical 
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evidence upon 'Yvhich an agency proposes to act, the agency may not elect one version of the 

evidence over the conflicting version unless the conflict is resolved by a reasoned and articulate 

decision, weighing and explaining the choices made and rendering its decision capable ofreview 

by an appellate court." Syl. Pt. 6, Muscatell v. Cline, 196 W. Va. 588,474 S.E.2d 518 CWo Va. 

1996). As such, the OAR failed to provide a reasoned, articulated reason as to why a particular 

version ofevents is given more weight than another (i.e., why Patrolman Holeston's testimony 

was given more weight than the Respondent's testimony) as required by Muscatell 11 • Thus, the 

Circuit Court did not abuse its discretion by concluding the OAR's Final Order did not provide 

a reasoned, articulated reason as to why a particular version of events (patrolman Holeston's 

testimony that the Respondent ~dmitted to consuming beer) is given more weight than another 

version (the Respondent's testimony wherein she denied consuming beer). 

TIl. The Circuit Court Did Not Abuse Its Discretion By Concluding The Respondent 
Reguested A Blood Or Urine Test 

W. Va. Code § 17C-5-9 states, in pertinent part, that any person arrest for driving a motor 

vehicle while under the influence of alcohol shan have the right to demand a sample of his or 

her blood or breath to determine the alcohol concentration within two hours ofthe time ofarrest. 

This code section accords an individual arrested for driving under the influence ofalcohol aright 

to demand and receive a blood test within two hours of the arrest. Moczek v. Bechtold, 178 

"'vV.Va. 553, 363 S.E.2d 238 (W.Va. 1987). "The defendant'S right to request and receive CI 

II Like\vise, according to the DUI Information Sheet, the petitioner passed the W ATtest. The OAR 
did not, however, give any weight to the fact the petitioner successfully passed the W AT test in it's Final 
Order. Rather, the OAR gave "no weight" to the W AT. The OAH, however, gave weight to the results 
of the other field sobriety tests (the HGN and OLS). As such, the administrative findings and 
subsequent revocation order did not provide a reasoned, articulated reason as to why a particular version 
of events (the alleged results of the HGN and OLS by Patrolman Holeston) is given more weight than 
another version (that the petitioner passed the WAT test). See Muscatell. 
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blood test is em importcmt procedural right that goes directly to a court's truth-findingfimction". 

State v. York: 175 "Iv. Va. 740,741,338 S.E.2d219, 221 ("IV. Va. 1985). Indeed, a person's due 

process rights are violated when helshe is denied a blood test because such denial would bar the 

accused from obtaining evidence necessary to hislher defense. Given the above, the Petitioner 

argues that the Respondent did not establish she requested a blood or urine test pursuant to 

vV.Va. Code §17C-5-9. The West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals in Dale v. Painter, 234 

W. Va. 343, 765 S.E.2d 232 (W.Va. 2014) examined a very similar issue (i.e., what is necessary 

to demonstrate a person under arrest properly asserted their right to a blood or urine test pursuant 

to vV.Va. Code § 17C-5-9). In Painter, the defendant alleged she requested a blood test pursuant 

to vV.Va. Code § 17C-5-9 because she asked the investigating officer and "someone" from the 

Western Regional Jail for the same. Importantly, the Painter Court held that a person under 

arrest must ask the investigating officer for a blood or urine test (not "someone" from the jail). 

Thereafter, the Court examined whether Ms. Painter asked the investigating officer for a blood 

test. Specifically, Ms Painter was asked "Did you tell the officer there himself?" and she 

responded "No, not this officer". Therefore, the Court held that the Ms. Painter did not satisfy 

her burden ofshowing she property asserted her right to a blood test under vV.Va. Code § 17C-5

9. 

The facts ofthis case, however, are different from Painter. Here, the Respondent clearly 

testified that "1asked him (the investigating officer) if1could take a blood or urine test". A. R. 

245. As such, the Respondent in this case asserted her right to a blood test in conformity \-vith 

Painter and W.Va. Code §17C-5-9. The Petitioner also notes that Patrolman Holeston testified 

he offered the Respondent a blood test and, accordingly, the Circuit Court's Final Order which 
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states the Respondent provided undisuuted testimony that she requested a blood test is "dead 

wrong". The Respondent acknowledges Patrolman Roleston testified that he asked the 

Respondent if she would submit to a blood test. That being said, this issue does not prove the 

Circuit Court's Final Order is "dead wrong" or that this mistake somehow demonstrates the 

Circuit Court abused its discretion. At a minimum, this conflicting issue presents a direct 

conflict in critical evidence which the OAR did not resolve by a reasoned and articulate decision. 

In fact, the OAR's Final Order fails to mention or discuss the fact the Respondent requested a 

blood test. 

IV. 	 The Circuit Court Did Not Abuse Its Discretion By Concluding That Patrolman 
Roleston's In-Car Video 'Which Captured The Events Was "Lost" Or "Missing 

"The concept ofAmericanjustice ... pronounces that for every wrong there is a remedy. 

It is incompatible with this concept to deprive a wrongfully injured party a remedy. " O'Neil v. 

City ofParkersbufQ:, 160 W. Va. 694, 697, 237 S.E.2d 504, 506 (vV. Va. 1977). Accordingly, 

"[i}t is afundamental principle oflaw that a party who reasonably anticipates litigation has an 

affirmative duty to preserve relevant evidence". Tracy v. Cottrell, 206 vv. Va. 363,371,524 

S.E.2d 879, 887 ("V. Va. 1999). Applying the above principles, the Petitioner asserts the Circuit 

Court abused its discretion because it concluded the video from Patrolman Roleston' in-car 

video recording system was "lost" or "missing". As grounds for its position, the Petitioner 

alleges no evidence was introduced which demonstrates a video was "actually made" (much less 

any evidence the video actually captured the events in question). See the Petitioner's Briefat 

10. The Petitioner is incorrect. Patrolman Roleston testified, in pertinent part, that his patrol car 

had an in-car video recording system; that the video would depict the events in question (the 

traffic stop, field sobriety tests, etc.); that the video was lost or not otherwise preserved; that it 
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"vas not the Respondent's fault the video was missing; and that he never provided a copy ofthe 

video to the Respondent, DIViV or OAB. A. R. 216-217. Contrary to the Petitioner's assertions, 

the only evidence presented demonstrates that a video was made of the events in question and 

the same is lost or missing. 

Last, the Petitioner asserts the Respondent could have obtained her own copy of the said 

video, but neglected to do so. As such, the Circuit Court abused its discretion by determining 

an adverse inference was warranted. In support ofits position, the Petitioner argues this case is 

similar to Simms v. Miller, 227 W. Va. 395, 709 S.E.2d 750 ("V. Va. 2011). In Simms, a video 

was made at the site where the secondary chemical test was conducted,.however, no such video 

was introduced into evidence. The Simms Court ultimately held that the failure to introduce the 

video into evidence did not warrant an adverse inference because Mr. Simms could have 

obtained a copy of the video and, if the same was favorable to him, could have introduced the 

same into evidence at the administrative hearing. Further, the Simms Court noted the video was 

never subpoenaed and that a request was never made to hold the record open in order to 

introduce the video at a later time. Here, the Respondent could not have introduced the video 

into evidence at the administrative hearing as the said video (which was exclusively in Patrolman 

Holeston's and the City of Madison's possession) was lost or missing. Moreover, the 

Respondent could not have subpoeaned the video for the administrative hearing because the 

same was lost (and the Respondent did make efforts in the accompanying criminal proceeding 

to procure a copy of the video, how-ever, she was informed the same was 10stI2). This case is 

12 Patrolman Holeston further testified during the 08111116 administrative hearing that he did 
not dispute the video was requested in the accompanying criminal proceeding and, further, that it was 
represented the video was lost. A. R. 235-236. 
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different from Simms. As such, the Circuit Court did not abuse its discretion by concluding the 

DAB failed to address the lost or missing video in its Final Order or the rebuttable presumption 

that arises from the said spoilation of evidence 13• 

DOREEN GRILLOT, 
By counsel 

Prepared by: /', 

MATTHEW M. HATFIELD, ESQUIRE 
(VVV Bar ID No. 8710) 
221 State Street, Suite 101 
Post Office Box 598 
Madison, vVest Virginia 25130 
(304) 369-1162 
mhhatfield@hotmail.com 
Counsel for Respondent 

13 Interestingly, the Petitioner does not discuss the elements for negligent spoilation of 
evidence as further set forth in Hannah v. Heeter, 213 W. Va. 704, 584 S.E.2d 560 CWo Va. 2003).